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VILLAGE VIEWS

A multi-view postcard from the late 1800s.
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Lower Road with Manor Farm on the left in 1895.  A woman has just filled her bucket with 
water at the spout which is barely visible under th e hedge to the left of the road.

A similar view in the 1930s.  The dwellings have be en re-thatched.  The small building 
on the right with a sign outside at what was Grove Cottage, now Greengrove Cottage, 

is where Albert Austin repaired boots and shoes.  H e always wore his army boots, 
puttees and breeches, from his time in the army dur ing the First World War.
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Monastery Road, known locally as Edington Bash, wit h local lads posing for the 
camera c. early 1900s. 

Similar view sometime later.  The building on the l eft has acquired a lean-to roof at the  front.  The  
building at the back was a carpenter’s workshop.  B eyond this at the junction with Lower Road can 

be seen the end of another workshop, thought to hav e once  been the Plough Inn skittle alley.
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View up Monastery Road towards Church View Cottages  and Edington Hill c. the late 1800s.  The 
sign on the end wall of the cottage on the left was  for Mr Oram’s saddle and harness making 

business which was undertaken in a shed in the gard en.  When Mr Oram died the cottage was left to 
his daughter, Elsie Nicholas, whose husband was a s ailor, and their four sons.  The four boys all 
served in WW2.  One was killed and Frank, the young est, known as ‘Spider’ because of his long 

legs, was badly wounded.  After the war he worked o n local farms and as a length man on the roads.  
He never married and could often be seen working in  the cottage garden.He never married and could often be seen working in  the cottage garden.

View of Church Terrace from further down Monastery Road.  The small buildings behind the 
cottages known as hovels contained the privies.  Th e sign is for the Plough Inn which is just off 

the picture to the right.
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The same area viewed from the high ground to the ea st known as Plough Weir.  The white 
building is the Vicarage and the building below and  to the right the Parish Room, once a 
Sunday School and now known as the Parish Hall.  Th e building in front is a carpenter’s 

workshop.  The thatch on the cottage to the left ha s been replaced with tiles.  The old van 
body in the foreground was used to house chickens a nd stood there for many years.

Bratton Road, known locally as the Top Road and now  as Westbury Road looking east towards the 
City and Tinhead.  The White Horse Inn and Tearoom is on the right with stables opposite.  Mr 
Oram’s saddle and harness making business was carri ed out from the small shed on the right. 
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Similar view to that on the previous page in the ea rly 1900s.  The man pointing is Sam 
Bathard who, together with his brother, Jim, was ki lled at the Battle of Loos in 1915.

Similar view again, this time in 1972, now with bus  shelter, telegraph poles, street 
lighting, white lines and road signs.
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A brilliantly sunlit Edington from the hill c. earl y 1900s with Picket Close allotments in the 
foreground.  The newly arrived railway can be seen in the shape of  the goods shed and the 

smoke from a locomotive at the station, also in vie w is the accommodation crossing that 
carried  a farm track from Inmead over the line to Ivy Mill and Housecroft Farms.carried  a farm track from Inmead over the line to Ivy Mill and Housecroft Farms.

This picture appears to have been taken a few minut es later.  The train can be seen 
moving off towards Westbury and passing under the c rossing.
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Similar view to that on the previous page but showi ng more of the Picket Close 
allotments, also known as the Byes, and with an ano nymous greeting.

The Top Road at Edington looking east with Berret’s  the bakers on the right.  
Beyond on the left are Glebe Cottage, the vicarage coach house and the beech 

trees, all since demolished for road widening.
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The beech trees at the vicarage from the east short ly before they were felled for 
road widening.

Upper Baynton Farm from the west in the 1930s.
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Tinhead

The name Tinhead was officially dropped in 1952 and survives today only in the name,
Tinhead Road. It never was a separate village, but a separate tithing within the Parish of
Edington. Known colloquially as ‘Tinit’ the name is thought to derive from ten hides. This
would have been a significant small estate since five hides was considered sufficient to
support the lowest class of Anglo-Saxon aristocratic landowner. Alternatively one hide
was a unit of land considered sufficient for the maintenance of one family and could be
ploughed by a team of 8 oxen – between 90 and 100 acres according to the nature of the
land. By the time of the Doomsday survey it had become a unit of taxation.

There were at one time two manor houses at Tinhead and one at Baynton. the location of
one of them being rather obscure but it may have been on the site of A’Beckett House.
The other was where Court Farm is now situated in Court Lane. It had a moat and what
has been described as an ecclesiastical barn; it was demolished early in the 19th century.
Baynton Manor, destroyed by fire in 1795, was located just north of the present Upper
Baynton Farm where the remains of the moat can still be seen.

Interesting buildings still in existence include A’Beckett House, Shore House, the old
George Inn, the old Malt House, the old school, the old Methodist Chapel and the old
Lamb Inn.

A’Becket House, parts of which are said to be mid-16th century, is thought to have beenA’Becket House, parts of which are said to be mid-16 century, is thought to have been
the home of the Whittaker family who owned cloth mills at Edington, Bratton and North
Bradley. Later the textile historian and Wiltshire writer, Kenneth Ponting, lived here.

Shore House was at one time Shore Farm and the house next door, now known as South
View House, was the Agent’s Office of the Erlestoke Estate, owned by the Watson-Taylor
family, which stretched from Edington to Urchfont and included many farms, woodlands,
public houses and cottages. The estate was disbursed in 1919.

The 18th century George, which closed in 1985, was a coaching inn on the Bath to
Salisbury route where extra horses would be taken on for the long steep climb up
Salisbury Hollow and on to Tinhead Hill which rises to over 700 feet. The Lamb Inn,
which closed in 2009, may have been named after the Lambe family who were at one
time landowners in the area.. An area near the church at Coulston is known as Lambe’s
Lawn.

Before 1828 when the chapel was built in Salisbury Hollow various premises including
local cottages were used by nonconformists. The Malt House was registered as a place
of worship in 1794, and in 1800 a coach house at Potters Barton* was put to similar use.
And according to Vi Hale, her grandfather recalled attending services in a barn where
chickens could be seen scratching about through gaps in the floorboards. It appears
likely, therefore, that this would have been the barn on saddle stones at Shore Farm.

*A study of census returns and old maps suggests that Potters Barton may have been in the area
where Beech House is now located.
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Tinhead from City Piece/Glovers Knoll – linked to Ed ington by the houses in the 
Weir which are just visible left of centre

Lower Road, Tinhead, now Tinhead Road in the 1930s showing the old Malt House, footpath to 
the Weir, the George Inn and Shore House, with Cour t Lane off to the right.  The well trodden 

path across the green in the foreground leads from Charlton Hill towards the Weir and the pub.  
Note the railway timetables on the end wall of the Malt House.
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Tinhead Pond, once known as Ostard Pond, in the 193 0s.  In those days a widow, old Mrs Higgins, 
lived at Pond Cottage on the left.  She took in was hing and she always wore wellington boots and 
a man’s old trilby hat.  She kept ducks on the pond  and at night would shut them up in the lean-to 

at the far end of the cottage. 

An earlier view of the pond with a woman drawing wa ter at the spout.  As children on 
our way home from school we would turn somersaults on the railings, and in winter 

when the pond was frozen, make a slide on the ice.
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Salisbury Hollow to the left and Long Hollow to the  right at Tinhead in the early 1900s.  The building  
on the left was a blacksmith’s shop and through the  gates in the fence was a ‘hooping ring’ and a 

well, both of which were essential for shrinking an d hardening iron tyres onto wagon wheels.  In the 
1930s-1950s, Jack and Myrtle Miles lived at the cottage on the l eft and Bill Light on the right.  The 1930s-1950s, Jack and Myrtle Miles lived at the cottage on the l eft and Bill Light on the right.  The 

blacksmith’s premises were later used by Percy Hale , the builder, as a workshop and yard.  The dark 
area below the tree on the right was a deep ditch, which was often smelly because, there being no 

main sewer, much of the waste water from the dwelli ngs found its way there.

Tinhead from Clandown in the early 1900s; one of th e author’s favourite spots.  Not as peaceful 
now as it was then – more traffic through the villag e of course and you can hear those beastly 

strimmers from here.
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The Top Road at Tinhead c. late 1800s, apparently b efore the school was 
built.  Bakery on the left, smithy on the right, La mb Inn in the distance.

Similar view about a hundred years later with evide nce in the road of the newly 
installed main sewer.  During WW2 the end wall of t he smithy on the right was severely 

damaged by an army tank  which failed to negotiate the bend.
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Similar view to those on the previous page in the w inter of 1981.

Court Lane, Tinhead, in the winter of 1981.  So nam ed because it led to a Manor 
House known as Tinhead Court where Court Farm is no w located.
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View up Salisbury Hollow, also known as Coach Hollo w, from just above the chapel on a sunny day 
in 1974.  This was the start of the old coach road that went up on to Tinhead Hill, across Coulston 
Hill and on over the Plain to Salisbury; the last r ecorded journey being in 1780.  A limekiln stood 

near the top of the Hollow, with a house occupied i n 1857 by Mrs Jane Boulter.  It was demolished in 
about 1900.about 1900.

View down the lower end of Salisbury Hollow towards  its junction with Long Hollow and the Top 
Road, with the old bakery beyond, in the winter of 1981.  The building on the right consisted of two 

one-room dwellings known locally as hovels, long si nce abandoned by their occupants and used as 
garden sheds.  The one at this end has since been d emolished.
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The footpath, known as
Portway, to Clandown in 

the winter of 1974.   A stile 
has replaced the gate 

which was there for many 
years.  Note part of an old 

bedstead in the fence.  
This was probably part of 
Ted Bathard’s chicken run 

thirty years earlier.

Lower Road at Tinhead looking south towards Shore H ouse, the George Inn 
and Charlton Hill the in the winter of 1984.
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The north end of Charlton Hill looking down past Bo x Cottage 
towards the green on a gloomy day in 1974.

The opposite view looking south towards Box Cottage  and the pond in the winter 
of 1981.
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Above & Below:  Two views across Tinhead from Burbages on Edington Hill on a sunny 
evening before the devastating Dutch elm disease of  the 1970s which downgraded for all 

time what had been a unique landscape.time what had been a unique landscape.
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The Methodist Chapel and Sunday School in Salisbury  Hollow.

Methodism was brought to the village by a travelling preacher, the Rev. James Rodgers,
in 1795 when services were conducted in local cottages. In 1800 a coach house at
Potters Barton, leased from the Erlestoke Estate by Jeremiah Potter, was converted forPotters Barton, leased from the Erlestoke Estate by Jeremiah Potter, was converted for
use as a chapel. On expiry of the lease in 1827, because of the hostility of the owner’s
steward, the lease was not renewed and the building was demolished.

The precise location of Potters Barton has not been established. The author has,
however, after studying old maps and census returns come the conclusion that it was
probably near the northern end of Charlton Hill in the area where Beech House is now
located.

In 1827 a subscription scheme was started and a Mr and Mrs Morgan purchased a large
garden in Salisbury Hollow which they donated for the site of a new chapel. The new
building was opened in 1828. In 1830 there were 24 members. Twenty years later, in
1848, considerable enlargement took place and a balcony added providing seating for
300 in total.

The next year, in 1849, a Sunday School was started with 132 members and in 1874 a
lending library – the only source of reading material for many villagers – was opened.
The Sunday Schoolroom was added in 1876.

Extensive repair and redecoration was undertaken and a new pulpit and platform
provided in the 1950s, but by 2004 the congregation had dwindled to 6 and the chapel
closed after 176 years on 19th September 2004. Methodist services are now held in a
side chapel at the Priory Church.
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The Chapel Notice Board at the 
bottom of Salisbury Hollow.

Chapel crockery presented to the author 
after the final tea when the chapel closed 

in 2004.

The interior of the chapel in 2003.  Brighter than when the author remembers it as a small child who 
was once in trouble with the steward [his grandfath er] for placing an elastic band on the old, but 

highly polished and very hot, coke burning stove.  It stank the place out for the entire service.  Fon d 
memories however of the hymn singing and celebrator y teas.
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View over the roof of the George Inn to the new dev elopment at Berry Road on the site of 
Shore Farm, with Cowleaze Lane and the railway bridg e beyond, in the 1970s. 

Willow trees at Inmead in the 1970s.
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West Coulston from Upper Baynton Farm in August 198 9.  The high ground to the 
right is Brewer’s Ground.

West Coulston from Brewer’s Ground c. late 1800s.
1 The New Inn public house, later known as Woodland s and now as Font House; 2 Rose Cottages 

[now rebuilt]; 3 Yew Tree Cottage [although condemn ed as unfit for human habitation, the author’s 
home in the 1940s, long since demolished]; 4 Name n ot known [now demolished].

� � �
�
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The dedication of Coulston Church in about 1500 was originally to St Andrew, but for the
last two hundred years or so it has been known as the Church of St Thomas a’ Beckett,

Coulston Church painted by J Buckler in 1807.

last two hundred years or so it has been known as the Church of St Thomas a’ Beckett,
probably after the Beckett family who were landowners in the area for many years.
Houses at Tinhead and Edington still retain the name. The wooden bell turret shown in
the painting disappeared in the last century.

In the churchyard is the grave of Francis Saville Kent, who was barely four years old
when, in 1860, his body was discovered in a privy at his home, Rode Hill House, at Rode,
then in the county of Wiltshire. He had been brutally murdered. The horror and mystery of
the crime created nation-wide interest and remained unsolved for five years. Francis’s
stepsister, Constance Kent, having entered a convent and about to take communion
before being received into the Order, confessed to being the perpetrator. She was
sentenced to penal servitude for life and was released from Portland Prison after serving
twenty years. She then emigrated to Australia where she changed her name to Emilie
Kaye, took up nursing,. and died at Sydney at the age of 100 in 1944. Several books have
since been written about the case in which theories as to the true perpetrators of the
crime have included Constance aided by her brother William, and Samuel Saville Kent,
their [and the murdered boy’s] father.

Samuel Saville Kent, one of HM Sub-Inspectors of Factories, had been married twice,
having had nine children by his first wife, Mary, four of whom died, and two, including
Francis, by his second wife, Mary Pratt, formerly his children’s governess.. The family had
for a time lived at Baynton House at Coulston, and Samuel’s first wife, Mary, was buried in
the churchyard there. It is thought that, as the crime had created such widespread
interest, the child’s body was brought to Coulston for burial in the grave of Samuel’s first
wife in an attempt to avoid publicity.
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The interior of Coulston Church in 1889.

Coulston Church in the winter of 1891.
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The road south through Coulston in the late 1800s.  1 Four small cottages converted to one dwelling 
in 1936/37 and named Old Manor Cottage; 2 Became kn own as Bolo’s Cottage [4-19]; 3 The Baptist 
Chapel, built in 1872 and closed in 1937, now a pri vate dwelling.  Before 1934 the buildings on the 

left were in East Coulston and those on the right w ere in West Coulston [4-17].

�

�

�

The Coulston Millennium Banner, made by villagers a nd displayed in the Village Hall.
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Above & Below:  Edington and Tinhead from the air.
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1889 map of Edington and Tinhead before the coming of the railway. Interesting features include the Wi lderness at 
the old fish pond, the  Post Office at the City; th e Baptist Chapel which was in a converted coach hou se at what 

the author believes to have been Potters Barton at Tinhead; the Tinhead Lime Kiln at the top of Salisb ury Hollow; 
Hobb’s Farm in Baynton Way and the site of the moat ed Baynton Manor.
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1889 map of Edington and Tinhead before the coming of the railway. Interesting features include the Wi lderness at 
the old fish pond, the  Post Office at the City; th e Baptist Chapel which was in a converted coach hou se at what 

the author believes to have been Potters Barton at Tinhead; the Tinhead Lime Kiln at the top of Salisb ury Hollow; 
Hobb’s Farm in Baynton Way and the site of the moat ed Baynton Manor.



A snow bound Charlton Hill from across the Top Road  in the 1950s.
The man is Frennie Hughes, a Romany, from Bulkington . 

Signpost at the Loynes in Lower Road, Tinhead, now Tinhead Road, Edington.  
Still there in 2005 but recorded by the author for posterity.
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